
Date Published:8 March 2022     

Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Wednesday 16 March 2022 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies for absence.

Cllr Tony Dale

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2022.

Cllr Tony Dale

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests by members.

Cllr Tony Dale

INFORMATION REPORTS

4  BROADBAND IN GLOUCESTERSHIRE (Pages 9 - 14)

To receive an update on broadband in the County.

Simon Excell

5  CYBER PROJECT 

To receive a presentation on progress with the Cyber Project in 
Cheltenham. 

Presentation to follow. 

Tim Atkins

6  STATEMENT OF COMMON GROUND 

To receive a brief verbal update on progress with the Statement for 
Common Ground action plan. 

Mike Dawson

7  GCC ECONOMIC DASHBOARD (Pages 15 - 28)

To receive an update on Gloucestershire County Council (GCC)’s 

Katherine Martin



    

Economic Dashboard.

8  GFIRST LEP UPDATE (Pages 29 - 38)

To receive an update on the work of the GFirst LEP.

Dev 
Chakraborty

DECISION REPORTS

9  BUSINESS RATE POOL (Pages 39 - 44)

a) To receive an update on the Business Rate Pool; 

b) To consider SEDF funding requests in respect of:

- The ‘Made in Gloucestershire’ Initiative; and

- Central Gloucestershire Mass Transit Scheme – 
development funding.

SEDF Bid EOIs and Assessment Templates to Follow. 

Andrew 
Cummings

WORK PLAN

10  FORWARD (WORK) PLAN (Pages 45 - 48)

To note the Committee work plan and consider items for discussion at 
future meetings, including emerging SEDF proposals. 

Please refer to the items listed under ‘Future Items’ that have previously 
been suggested for potential consideration by the Committee. 

Cllr Tony Dale

11  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of meetings for the remainder of 2022 (all 
meetings to start at 10am):

19 May 2022

7 September 2022

16 November 2022. 

 

Cllr Tony Dale

Membership –  Cllr Philip Robinson (Vice-Chair) Cllr Rowena Hay, Cllr Rob Bird, Cllr Richard 
Cook, Cllr Doina Cornell, Cllr Tony Dale (Chair) and Cllr Bernie O'Neill
Dev Chakraborty

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 



    

rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT 
COMMITTEE

MINUTES of the meeting of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee 
held on Wednesday 26 January 2022 commencing at 2.00 pm at the Virtual Meeting - 
Web ex meeting.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Rowena Hay
Cllr Rob Bird
Cllr Richard Cook
Cllr Tony Dale (Chair)

Dev Chakraborty
Cllr Bernie O'Neill
Cllr Philip Robinson (Vice-Chair)
Cllr Catherine Braun

Substitutes:

Apologies:

Officers in
attendance:

Colin Chick (GCC)               Jon McGinty (Glos City)              
Steve Mawson (GCC)          Paul James (CDC)
Simon Excell (GCC)             Gareth Edmundson (CBC)
Angela Presdee (GCC) Sandra Ford (TBC)
Gillian Parkinson (GCC)       Andrew Cummings (SDC)
Katherine Martin (GCC)       Peter Williams (FODDC)
Laura Powick (GCC)            Pete Carr (GFirst LEP)
Cllr Matt Babbage (GCC)     Lisa McCance (Shared Intelligence)

320. APOLOGIES 

There were no apologies at the meeting from Committee members. 

321. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2021 were agreed as a correct 
record. 

322. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

323. GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Cllr Matt Babbage, Chair of the Gloucestershire Economic Growth Scrutiny
Committee (GEGSC), provided the Committee with an update on the activities of 
the GEGSC.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

At its meeting on 17 November 2021, the Committee received a number of 
presentations on modern methods of construction, as part of a series of sessions 
on the topic. It was hoped that a report would be presented to the GEGJC on the 
findings of the Scrutiny Committee at a later date. 

At its meeting on 19 January 2022, the GEGSC received a presentation on the 
Gloucestershire Infrastructure Investment Fund Programme, as well receiving an 
update on strategic planning in the County.  

One member asked whether the GEGSC had developed any specific proposals 
relating to modern methods of construction in Gloucestershire? In response, Cllr 
Babbage explained that no proposals had been developed. However what had 
been emphasised to the Committee was that despite modular methods of 
construction being more costly than normal methods, modular constructed houses 
were much more energy efficient, and therefore when you factored in the costs to 
get a normal house to the same standard, the difference in costs was minimal. 

One member commented that modular methods of construction worked best for 
large scale developments, which may not be viable for Gloucestershire. 

324. GEGJC GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS 

Sandra Ford, Head of Development Services, Tewkesbury Borough Council, 
introduced the proposal regarding GEGJC governance, on behalf of Mike Dawson, 
Chair of the GEGJC Senior Officer Group (SOG).

Members were informed that at the Leadership Gloucestershire meeting on 13 
January 2022, partner authorities, which included Gloucestershire County Council 
and Gloucestershire District authorities, agreed to extend the Inter Authority 
Agreement for the Joint Committee until 1 April 2023, pending further consideration 
of the Government’s Levelling Up white paper once it was published. 

Clarification was sought as to whether this meant the Committee would continue in 
its current form up until 1 April 2023, regardless of when the white paper was 
released. Following a brief discussion it was understood that this date had been set 
to provide flexibility and to enable the thorough consideration of the white paper 
when it was published. 

The Committee was advised that this proposal would be taken away by each 
partner authority for consideration and agreement through their formal decision-
making processes. 

325. EMPLOYMENT AND SKILLS 

Pete Carr, Director of Employment and Skills, GFirst LEP, provided the Committee 
with a presentation on the Gloucestershire Skills Strategy. 

Members were provided with an overview of the aims and ambitions of the strategy, 
which included linking with existing plans and strategies, and acting as a ‘hook’ for 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

funding. The strategy addressed the delivery of skills that meet the needs of local 
businesses, such as cyber and digital skills, as well as skills that supported 
individuals to achieve their potential. 

The strategy aimed to maximise local employment opportunities presented by local 
developments, such as by promoting good practice of the use of Social Value and 
S106 funding, as well as aiming to coordinate and collaborate to simplify the local 
employment and skills landscape, such as by working with employers and 
individuals using ‘one front door’.

One member queried why apprenticeships in specific sectors, such as aerospace, 
were not referenced in the strategy? In response it was explained that the strategy 
aimed for better alignment from providers with County priorities, such as cyber and 
digital, and green skills.

In response to a further question on how district authorities could work more in 
partnership with the LEP on employment and skills, it was understood that the 
county-wide strategy aimed to work alongside different local priorities, and that the 
challenges and opportunities identified by partner authorities had been highlighted 
in the strategy. Additionally, regular meetings took place between the LEP and 
economic development leads from the district and county local authorities. 

The Committee noted the Gloucestershire Skills Strategy.

326. GCC COVID-19 ECONOMIC DASHBOARD 

Katherine Martin, Data and Analysis Manager, GCC, provided the Committee with 
an update on GCC’s Covid-19 Economic Dashboard. The Economic Dashboard 
was attached to the agenda papers for this meeting. 

One member queried, in relation to data on the Kickstart Scheme, why Cinderford 
had been used to identify the location of starts, rather than the Forest of Dean as a 
whole. In response, it was explained that this was due to the way the Department 
for Work and Pensions collected this data.

It was requested that, as the furlough scheme and the immediate response to 
Covid-19 had now ended, that the economic dashboard be revised going forward. 
This might include looking at data relating to skills in the County.

Another question was raised regarding the increase in economic inactivity, 
particularly amongst those aged between 40 and 60 years old, and whether this 
Committee should be looking at how to help vulnerable communities become more 
resilient. It was suggested that an item on this topic be added to the work plan for 
future consideration by the Committee. 

One member commented that it would be useful to consider how to encourage 
young people to stay and work in Gloucestershire, whilst another stated they would 
welcome the opportunity to consider other economic indicators in the County, such 
as health. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

One member commented that levelling up applied not only in terms of geography, 
but also by age, noting the disadvantages that could be experienced by young 
people in the County. It was queried why the under 19s age group was bucking the 
trend in terms of apprenticeship starts? In response, it was explained that the 
decline in apprenticeship starts for this age group could be seen prior to the 
pandemic, and this was also being seen at a national level. It was suggested that a 
wider conversation needed to be had on the issue, involving providers. 

327. GFIRST LEP UPDATE 

Dev Chakraborty, Deputy Chief Executive of GFirst LEP, presented the Committee 
with an update on the work of the GFirst LEP.

In particular, members were informed that it was disappointing that the white paper 
on levelling up had still not been released. It was understood that the timescale for 
release had now been pushed back until February. 

Members were advised that the LEP review was tied in with this white paper. 
Funding for LEPs had been confirmed until 31 March 2022, and verbal reassurance 
had been given that core funding would be received for the next year.

 An update was provided on the Getting Building projects. It was understood that 
two of the projects were now complete, with the remainder to be completed by early 
summer.

The Committee noted that Phil Clement had been appointed as the new Head of 
Inward Investment responsible for the Invest in Gloucestershire project. It was 
understood that he would be a key driver in seeking new investors and promoting 
Gloucestershire’s offering. It was noted that he was currently working his way 
around the seven authorities in the County to meet with their economic leads. 

Finally, the Made in Gloucestershire initiative task force would be meeting on 8 
February to consider the budget for its launch, which could require a SEDF bid.

328. FORWARD (WORK) PLAN 

It was suggested that a presentation reflecting on the first year of the Skills Hub’s 
operation be added to the work plan for consideration by the Committee later on in 
the year.

There was a discussion around what could be done to support bus services in light 
of delayed or cancelled services due to a shortage of bus drivers, which impacted 
on the ability of members of the public who took the bus being able to get to work. 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

As such, it was suggested that an item on the impact of the shortage of bus drivers 
on the local economy be added to the work plan. In response to this suggestion, 
Colin Chick, Executive Director for Economy, Environment and Infrastructure, 
explained that they needed to get to the other side of the Bus Service Improvement 
Plan before a report could be brought to the Committee. He also explained that it 
was difficult to reverse the downward trend of bus service use, as people continued 
to avoid using the buses due to Covid-19, which then meant services were 
cancelled due to lack of demand, which then meant using the bus became less 
attractive. 

Members were encouraged to complete the GCC survey on bus services that was 
open until 30 January. 

Additionally, it was requested that an item on the provision of sustainable transport, 
particularly in rural areas, be added to the work plan. 

329. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Committee dates for the remainder of 2022 would be circulated to Committee 
members after the meeting. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 3.35 pm

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee actions – 26 January 2022 

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Economic Dashboard To review the economic dashboard going 
forward. 

Colin Chick To be reviewed ahead of the 
next meeting on 16 March 
2022. 

263. Economic Dashboard To add an item on addressing economic inactivity 
in Gloucestershire, how to encourage young 
people to stay and work in the County, and 
helping vulnerable communities to become more 
resilient to the work plan. 

Laura Powick Completed. 

350. Economic Dashboard To add an item on the decline in apprenticeship 
starts amongst under 19s to the work plan. 

Laura Powick Completed.

4 Forward (work) plan A presentation reflecting on the first year of the 
Skills Hub’s operation to be added to the work 
plan for consideration by the Committee later on 
in the year.

Laura Powick Completed. 

565. Forward (work) plan An item on the impact of the shortage of bus 
drivers on the local economy to be added to the 
work plan for later on in the year.

Laura Powick Completed. 

6 66. Forward (work) plan An item on the provision of sustainable transport, 
particularly in rural areas, to be added to the work 
plan.

Laura Powick Completed.

767. Future Meetings To circulate the Committee dates for the 
remainder of 2022 with Committee members. 

Laura Powick Completed. 

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTERSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 

GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE

Title: Broadband in Gloucestershire

Reporting to: Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee

Date: 16 March 2022

Chairman: Cllr Tony Dale

Presenting 
Officer: 

Simon Excell – Assistant Director Planning and Economic 
Development

Purpose of 
report: To provide an update on broadband delivery across the County

Background 
documents:

The Fastershire Strategy 2019-2022, is available on the 
Fastershire website at: 
https://www.fastershire.com/assets/file/FSB%20Strategy/Fasters
hire_Broadband_Strategy_2019-22.pdf 

Cabinet decision to approve Fastershire Broadband Strategy 
2019 – 2022 and the incorporation the Stage 5 Community 
Grant offer into the Fastershire Delivery Programme:

https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID
=1393

Individual Cabinet Member Decision report outlining changes to 
the programme Fastershire Delivery (December 2021)
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID
=1791

Summary: This information report outlines the focus of the Government’s 
national commitment for Gigabit enabled digital infrastructure by 
2030.  It also outlines the impacts of recent decisions regarding 
local programme delivery.  This includes some delivery delays 
for parts of the county, the transferring of some properties in the 
Forest of Dean to the Project Gigabit and a review of the 
community grant offer to ensure it remains fit for purpose. 

Anticipated 
Outcomes:  

That the Committee notes the report.

         

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

https://www.fastershire.com/assets/file/FSB%20Strategy/Fastershire_Broadband_Strategy_2019-22.pdf
https://www.fastershire.com/assets/file/FSB%20Strategy/Fastershire_Broadband_Strategy_2019-22.pdf
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1393
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1393
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1791
https://glostext.gloucestershire.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=1791


                                                                                                                                                  
Background

1. At time of writing this report 96.49% of premises in Gloucestershire have access 
to Superfast (>=30 Megabits per second (Mbps)) broadband connectivity.  This 
level of digital connectivity is consistent with the national position experienced 
across England (96.96%).  

2. Demand for high quality digital infrastructure has never been greater.  The 
experience of the Covid-19 pandemic on households and businesses has 
changed the way people now live their lives.  This has resulted in increased 
reliance and expectation for faster and more stable digital connectivity to support 
everyday activities.  

3. As demand grows for better digital access, the infrastructure supporting that 
demand must also grow to meet this demand.  The government, having achieved 
the national target of 95% superfast coverage, has evolved its aspirations to 
delivering improved infrastructure networks capable of supporting far greater 
digital download speeds.  

4. National aspirations for digital connectivity are now linked to supporting Gigabit 
broadband connectivity.  Gigabit capable broadband is the same as 1,000 Mbps 
and represents a monumental jump in terms of what this level of connectivity 
could support.  This change does not mean that households will be left behind; it 
simply means that the level of access provided will be different.  

5. Commercial investment in digital infrastructure is critical to meeting this demand.  
Companies such as Openreach, Virgin Media, City Fibre (and their partners 
Vodafone), Gigaclear, HyperOptic, Fibre Nation, Airband, Zzoomm, Glide, Full 
Fibre Ltd and others continue to invest in Gloucestershire where it is 
commercially viable to do so.  

6. Within Gloucestershire, 57.5% of properties have access to Gigabit supported 
digital infrastructure.  For England, national access is 66.14%.  The lower figure 
in Gloucestershire reflects the county’s rural character. 

7. Where it is not commercially viable to invest in digital infrastructure, the 
government provides funding to subsidise investment.  Despite this additional 
support, for some rural areas, it remains too expensive within the existing value 
for money rules to justify the level of subsidy required.  Where this is the case, 
alternative options need to be explored to understand what solutions best reflect 
the local circumstances.

8. Public sector investment in delivering broadband networks is managed nationally 
by Building Digital UK (BDUK), part of the Department for Digital, Culture, Media 
and Sport (DCMS).  In February 2022 the Levelling-Up White Paper reiterated 
the government’s commitment that by 2030 the UK will have nationwide gigabit-
capable digital network.  It should be noted that 11 months earlier in March 2021 
a similar commitment was made in terms of a nationwide Gigabit network, but 
this had a 2025 commitment date.  This delay highlights the complexity and 
significant cost associated with delivering the scale of infrastructure required to 
meet this commitment. 

Page 10



Fastershire

9. At a local level, the Fastershire project manages the subsided roll-out of digital 
infrastructure.  Fastershire is a formal partnership between Gloucestershire 
County Council and Herefordshire Council with support from BDUK. 

10.Both local authorities agreed to work together to address the challenges of 
broadband availability across both counties. The project encourages the 
attraction of commercial investment and enables suppliers to invest in broadband 
networks by using a range of public subsidy mechanisms to improve the 
deployment in infrastructure in areas that have proved to be commercially 
unviable.

11. The focus of the Fastershire Broadband Strategy 2019-22 is to “increase 
superfast broadband coverage across the two counties through a mixture of 
contracts and grants, opting for Gbps capable or full-fibre broadband where 
value for money allows”.  This means that the first priority is to reach premises 
still below 30Mbps. Where there is potential the project will also promote the 
opportunity to have Gigabit coverage. 

12.Since its inception in 2012 the Fastershire project has successfully supported an 
increase in access to superfast networks from 45% of properties to 96.49% 
during a 10-year period.

13.Where the Fastershire project has contracts for broadband deployment with 
commercial suppliers, it is based on a gap funding model.  This means that the 
project provides public sector funding (provided by BDUK and the local authority) 
to subsidise the delivery of broadband services, where it is deemed ‘not 
commercially viable’.

14.The Fastershire Broadband delivery programme is summarised in the table 
below.  Stage 1 is an ongoing process, Stage 2 has been completed and Stages 
3 and 4 are being delivered concurrently.  Stages 2 and 3 are funded by a 
combination of Herefordshire Council, GCC, national Government and private 
sector match funding. Stage 4 is primarily European Union funded and will end 
shortly.  Implementation of Stage 5 commenced from March 2020 utilising local 
authority capital funding, to stimulate commercial investment for smaller 
community cluster solutions.

Stage Title Focus of activities

1 Commercial 
Delivery 

Actively monitor the market’s intention to provide both 
superfast and full-fibre connectivity. Encourage and work 
with commercial providers to use their own investment to 
extend access to full fibre broadband.

2 Fastershire-wide 
Contract 

Promotion of broadband delivery across the two 
counties. BT were awarded a significant contract to 
deliver superfast coverage.

3 Regional 
Contracts 

Manage the Gigaclear full-fibre rural contracts to their 
successful conclusion having maximised the 
opportunities to generate the greatest possible coverage. 

4 Small Cluster 
Contracts 

Conclude the BT 2 smaller lots in 
Cheltenham/Gloucester contracts, and explore 

Page 11

https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/directory-record/6057/fastershire-broadband-strategy


opportunities to stimulate commercial full-fibre 
investment.

5 Fastershire 
Community 
Broadband Grant 
and bespoke 
grant schemes 

Launch a Fastershire “Dynamic Purchasing System” 
through which local communities (either singly or acting 
in groups) can apply for Fastershire grants to pay for 
Gbps capable infrastructure.
Launch Phase 2 of the Marches and Gloucestershire 
Business Grant (MGBG) helping individual and groups of 
businesses to procure the digital connection services 
they need.

Stage 3 of the Fastershire Delivery Programme

15. In January 2017, Gigaclear was awarded a number of contracts as part of Stage 
3 of the Fastershire delivery programme.  Four years into delivering these 
contracts Gigaclear were finding it increasingly difficult to achieve their 
contractual commitments. This was due the escalating costs associated with the 
delivery of full-fibre networks in rural areas. The map provided below outlines the 
geographic locations of the areas covered by the different contracts awarded 
across the Fastershire project area.

16. In April 2020 an Officer Decision Report agreed to change the terms of the 
contracts awarded to Gigaclear subject to state aid approval.  BDUK did not 
approve the proposed changes resulting in a dispute between Fastershire and 
BDUK.

Page 12



17.The dispute continued until August 2021 when a compromise was agreed.  The 
proposed changes outlined in April 2020 would not be implemented, however 
BDUK accepted that the scope of contracts awarded to Gigaclear could be 
changed.  

18. In December 2021, the Cabinet Member for Economy, Education and Skills 
agreed to a number of changes to the contracts awarded to Gigaclear.  These 
changes were consistent with changes agreed by Herefordshire Council, BDUK 
and Gigaclear.

19.The changes agreed related to some properties previously identified to receive 
subsidy support now becoming part of Gigaclear’s commercial programme; and 
some properties being removed from the existing contracts due to the high costs 
associated with delivering the full-fibre digital infrastructure. 

20.The inclusion of additional premises as part of the commercial delivery 
programme resulted in the completion dates on the following contracts being 
extended:

 Lot 2/3c: south Herefordshire and Gloucestershire (west of the River Severn) 
from March 2022 to December 2022;

 Lot 3d: north Gloucestershire from June 2021 to April 2022; and 
 Lot 3e: south Gloucestershire from December 2021 to September 2022.

21.For those properties removed from these existing contracts they will transfer to 
BDUK’s Project Gigabit.  1,187 premises located in the Forest of Dean are 
impacted by the decision and these would now be covered by a new Stage 6 of 
the Fastershire delivery programme.

22.The map provided below outlines how these decisions impact Gloucestershire.

Stage 5 of the Fastershire Delivery Programme

23. In December 2019 GCC approved the formation of Stage 5 Community Grant 
scheme of the Fastershire Delivery Programme.  This is intended to support 

Page 13



those areas where the market has failed to deliver broadband infrastructure 
supporting, at minimum, Superfast broadband connectivity.

24. It encourages communities not covered by existing roll out plans/contracts to 
collectively approach suppliers using a Dynamic Purchasing System (DPS).  The 
awarding of grants to support communities is determined on a cost per premise 
basis. If the individual grant value is less than £5k, the grants will be approved.   
If it cost per premise exceeds this value, the total number of non-participating ‘still 
to do’ premises covered incidentally by the project will be accounted for and 
considered within the grant determining process.

25.To date, the Fastershire Community Grant has secured 11 broadband contracts 
through the DPS with three broadband providers - Airband, Gigaclear and Full 
Fibre across the two counties.  Seven of these are in Gloucestershire (including 
Bentham, Churcham, Northwick Park and Draycott, Cinderford and Witcombe), 
totalling 387 beneficiaries. There are also currently a further four grant awards 
being progressed.

26.As part of the decision taken by Cabinet Member for Economy, Education and 
Skills agreed in December 2021 regarding the changes to the Stage 3 contracts, 
there was a commitment to review how the Community Grant scheme operates in 
Gloucestershire.  This review is due to conclude this Spring and will consider if 
any short-term support can be provided for those properties in the Forest of Dean 
impacted by the decision to transfer them to BDUK’s Project Gigabit.

Next Steps

27. In addition to the conclusion of the Fastershire Community Grant scheme review 
this Spring, the existing Fastershire partnership agreement between 
Gloucestershire County Council and Herefordshire Council will need to be 
reviewed.

28. As the Fastershire Project nears its conclusion it is important to ensure that the 
project definition outlined in the partnership agreement remains fit for purpose.  
This work will progress over the coming months, and it is likely it will need to be 
reviewed on annual basis and informed by an updated Fastershire Strategy, with 
the existing one due to expire later this year.

Page 14



COVID19 and Economic Intelligence

March 2022

Data and Analysis Team

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7



The Economy – impact of COVID-19
Claimant Count Job postings

14,740
Job postings 
in Jan 2022

23.6% 
up on Feb 

2020*

10,890
People claiming 
unemployment 
related benefits, 

Jan 22

2.8% 
of  16-64 
year olds,

Jan 22

Mobility

Visits to retail 
and recreation 
locations down 

8%
on baseline as at 

25/02/2022

* Please see slide 9 for details on changes to this measure

283,917
Payrolled employees, 

Jan 22

Payrolled employees

0.7%
Up on Feb 2020

£1,996 
Median pay per month, 

Jan 22

10.2%
Up on Feb 2020

Median pay

P
age 16



The Economy – impact of COVID-19

NEET’S

395
16-18 year 
olds Jan 22

Universal Credit

41,518
People claiming 
Universal Credit, 

Jan 22

10.8% 
of 16-64 year 

olds

Apprenticeships

1,600
Apprenticeship 

starts 
Q1 2021/22

Kickstart Gateway, 1st Mar 22

138
Starts

164
advertised vacancies

383
Businesses 
incorporated 
January 2022

302
Businesses 
dissolved 

January 2022

Business Incorporations and Dissolutions

P
age 17



Universal Credit
41,518

People claiming 
Universal Credit, Jan 21 10.8% of 16-64 year 

olds, Jan 22

Notes: 

Includes those who are searching for work and 
those who aren’t. 

P
age 18



Universal Credit

Notes: 

Includes those who are 
searching for work and those 
who aren’t. 

Universal Credit statistics 
measure employment as 
receiving earnings during 
the assessment period 
which is active on the 
count date.

Data is one month below 
total figures

Mar-20 Dec-21 Trend between January 2019 - December 2021

Not in employment 13,983          22,918          
..

In employment 9,224            18,484          
..

Number of claimants by employment status

P
age 19



Claimant Count - Unemployment
10,890

People claiming 
unemployment 
related benefits, 

Jan 22

2.8% 
of  16-64 year olds,

Jan 22

Notes: 
Includes people claiming Jobseeker's Allowance 
plus those who claim Universal Credit and are 
searching for work.

The government's response to COVID‐19 meant 
that an increasing number of people became 
eligible for unemployment‐related benefit support, 
although still employed. 

P
age 20



Claimant Count - Unemployment

Notes: 
Includes people claiming Jobseeker's Allowance 
plus those who claim Universal Credit and are 
searching for work.

The response to COVID‐19 meant that people 
became eligible for unemployment‐related benefit 
support, although still employed. 

Mar-20 Jan-22 Trend between Mar 
20-Jan 22

Aged 18-24 3.2% 3.9%

Aged 25-29 3.1% 4.1%

Aged 30-34 2.8% 4.1%

Aged 35-39 2.2% 3.5%

Aged 40-44 1.9% 3.0%

Aged 45-49 1.6% 2.3%

Aged 50-54 1.5% 1.9%

Aged 55-59 1.4% 1.9%

Aged 60-64 1.4% 1.8%

Claimants as a percentage of the age group

P
age 21



Claimant Count - Unemployment

P
age 22



Payrolled Employees

283,917
Payrolled employees, 

Jan 22

0.7%
Up on Feb 2020

Notes: 
The number of payrolled employees  is defined as the 
number of people receiving paid renumeration included in 
PAYE RTI , including people who have not done work but 
are an employee ‐ such as those on paid leave or furlough.

It only includes individuals paid through PAYE and does not 
cover other sources of income such as from  self‐
employment or investments

P
age 23



Payrolled Employees

£1,996 
Median pay per month, 

Jan 22

Notes: 
The number of payrolled employees  is defined as the 
number of people receiving paid renumeration included in 
PAYE RTI , including people who have not done work but 
are an employee ‐ such as those on paid leave or furlough.

It only includes individuals paid through PAYE and does not 
cover other sources of income such as from  self‐
employment or investments

10.2%
Up on Feb 2020

P
age 24



Unique Active Job Postings

14,740
Unique active job 
postings, Jan 22

Notes: 
Job postings are collected from online 
sources , it doesn’t capture postings that 
are not advertised online, this might result 
in undercounting for some  occupations. 

This data shows any active posting rather 
than newly listed postings. A posting is 
removed from the count after it has been 
online for 61 days

A job postings does not necessarily result in 
a job and some jobs will be created without 
a job postings

Data is subject to change. 

EMSI the company who supply information around job postings have recently made improvements to the 
data to ensure its more accurate and  better reflects the current labour market. The changes include: 

More timely tracking: The old data counted all active postings, which could include those that had been left 
up for months. With the new data, cut‐off point of 60 days has been set, which better reflects changing 
labour market conditions.
Better sourcing: The data sourcing is now more selective than in the past, particularly in terms of stripping 
out a lot of aggregators, which sweep the internet looking for job postings, and repost them in different 
formats
Improved quality: They have invested significantly in improving filters to root out things that look like job ads 
but actually aren't. For example, training courses often use similar descriptions as job adverts,  they  are now 
able to eliminate these
Enhanced deduplication: They have significantly improved the deduplication process, which enables us to 
filter out instances where the same job advert appears multiple times across the internet.

These changes mean the number of job postings across the county is much lower than reported previously, 
however the overall trend is largely unchanged and the new measure will provide a better insight into 
Gloucestershire’s labour market. 

P
age 25



Unique Active Job Postings
Notes: 
Job postings are collected from online sources , it 
doesn’t capture postings that are not advertised 
online, this might result in undercounting for some  
occupations. 

This data shows any active posting rather than newly 
listed postings. A posting is removed from the count 
after it has been online for 61 days

A job postings does not necessarily result in a job and 
some jobs will be created without a job postings

Data is subject to change. 

Feb 2020 
Unique 

Postings

Jan 2021 
Unique 

Postings

Jan 2022 
Unique 

Postings

% change Feb 
2020- Jan 

2022

Trend between January 2019 
- January 2022

Managers, Directors and Senior Officials 890 899 1,075 21%
Professional Occupations 3,357 3,680 3,859 15%
Associate Professional and Technical Occupations 2,063 1,998 2,394 16%
Administrative and Secretarial Occupations 1,117 1,015 1,476 32%
Skilled Trades Occupations 1,027 789 1,113 8%
Caring, Leisure and Other Service Occupations 994 1,086 1,548 56%
Sales and Customer Service Occupations 1,116 843 1,250 12%
Process, Plant and Machine Operatives 576 507 750 30%
Elementary Occupations 718 685 1,231 71%
Total Across All Occupations 11,924 11,596 14,740 24%

Vacancies by occupation

EMSI the company who supply information around job postings have recently made improvements to the 
data to ensure its more accurate and  better reflects the current labour market. The changes include: 

More timely tracking: The old data counted all active postings, which could include those that had been left 
up for months. With the new data, cut‐off point of 60 days has been set, which better reflects changing 
labour market conditions.
Better sourcing: The data sourcing is now more selective than in the past, particularly in terms of stripping 
out a lot of aggregators, which sweep the internet looking for job postings, and repost them in different 
formats
Improved quality: They have invested significantly in improving filters to root out things that look like job 
ads but actually aren't. For example, training courses often use similar descriptions as job adverts,  they  are 
now able to eliminate these
Enhanced deduplication: They have significantly improved the deduplication process, which enables us to 
filter out instances where the same job advert appears multiple times across the internet.

These changes mean the number of job postings across the county is much lower than reported previously, 
however the overall trend is largely unchanged and the new measure will provide a better insight into 
Gloucestershire’s labour market. 

P
age 26



Business Incorporations

Notes: 
A company incorporation is 
when a company is added to 
the Companies House register 
of limited companies. This 
can also include where an 
existing business applies to 
become a limited company, 
where it wasn't one before. 
Companies House 
incorporations do not capture 
business start‐ups of other 
business types such as those 
starting up as an 
unincorporated sole 
proprietorship or partnership

Source: Dedicated to  Growth

383
Businesses 
incorporated 
January 2022

P
age 27



Business Dissolutions

Notes: 
This refers to all companies 
that have been removed from 
the Companies House register. 
There are two reasons this 
may occur
• voluntary dissolution when 

a company applies to be 
dissolved. For a company to 
be eligible it should not 
have completed any trading 
activity for  three months.

• compulsory dissolution 
when a company fails to file 
the required financial 
accounts and/or 
confirmation statements

Source: Dedicated to  Growth

302
Businesses 
dissolved 

January 2022

P
age 28



GFirst LEP Update for GEGJC meeting 16th March, 2022
Prepared by Dev Chakraborty (Deputy Chief Executive GFirst LEP)

1) Government unveils levelling up plan

The long-awaited Levelling Up White Paper was published on February 3rd by central 
Government. In it, the Prime Minister, Boris Johnson announced a dozen targets to make 
people happier and live longer in his effort to "level up" the country.

It is a long (332 pages) and wide-ranging document. Levelling up is defined as meaning: 
“Giving everyone the opportunity to flourish. It means people everywhere living longer and 
more fulfilling lives, and benefitting from sustained rises in living standards and wellbeing”. 

The white paper includes a series of medium-term ‘missions’ which are all ‘decade long 
endeavours’, to be achieved by 2030. The ‘missions’ to be hit are:

 Jobs - Pay, employment and productivity should rise in every area of the UK, with 
each containing a globally competitive city.

 Research - Public investment in R&D outside the South-east will increase by at least 
40 per cent.

 Transport - Local public transport connectivity across the country will be significantly 
closer to the standards of London.

 Technology - Nationwide gigabit-capable broadband and 4G coverage, with 5G for the 
majority.

 Education - The number of primary school children achieving the expected standard 
in reading, writing and maths will have significantly increased.

 Skills - The number of people completing high-quality skills training will have 
significantly rise in every area.

 Health - The gap in healthy life expectancy (HLE) between areas will narrow, and by 
2035 HLE will rise by five years.

 Happiness - Well-being will also have improved across the UK, with the gap between 
top performing and other areas closing.

 Local pride - People’s satisfaction with their town centre and local culture will rise.

 Housing - Renters will have a secure path to ownership.

 Crime - Homicide, serious violence and local crime will fall.

 Mayors – Local devolution with elected county mayors for all areas that want London 
style control over issues like transport.

It also defines six forms of “capital”, all of which are needed to drive levelling up: 

• Physical capital – infrastructure, machines and housing. 

• Human capital – the skills, health and experience of the workforce. 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



• Intangible capital – innovation, ideas and patents.  

• Financial capital – resources supporting the financing of companies. 

• Social capital – the strength of communities, relationships and trust 

• Institutional capital – local leadership, capacity and capability. 

Also within the White Paper is the first real detail of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund (UKSPF). 
The UKSPF is important because it is the replacement for the old European Union funds 
which supported projects in the county including; business services run by the Growth Hub 
and the county’s Inward Investment activity. 

The Government has published some additional information, indicating that each District 
Authority will get a UKSPF allocation calculated by formula that it can spend on defined 
purposes including business support. But we still don’t know when and how decisions will 
be taken about what is spent, on what, in each place. 

The Chair of GFirst LEP, Ruth Dooley and the CEO, David Owen met with Neil O’Brien MP 
(Parliamentary Under-Secretary for State for Levelling Up, The Union and Constitution) and 
Paul Scully MP (Parliamentary Under-Secretary of State for Small Business, Consumers and 
Labour Markets) for a pre-announcement briefing on the Levelling up White Paper and how 
it impacts on the work of GFirst LEP, Gloucestershire’s Local Enterprise Partnership. 

CEO David Owen says, “The Ministers recognised the ‘huge amount of work’ that LEPs have 
done in the last few years to support businesses and local economies.  Key roles for us 
moving forward will be to continue to be the business voice in the levelling up agenda and in 
local economic growth and to lead on strategic economic planning for the county.” 

“We will also continue to have a core convening role with all partners at a local level in the 
development and delivery of local economic strategy. This would include working with local 
authorities to shape any potential devolution deal and the impact it would have on 
businesses and the private sector.”

“Today’s Levelling-Up White Paper marks a milestone for LEPs by embedding our role in 
draft policy for the first time. It is a natural evolution of the role of business in local decision 
making and a legacy to all the work LEPs have done so far – they are now central to the new 
policy agenda that government is taking forward.”

“We’re ready for this fresh challenge and look forward to building on the great relationships 
with partners right across Gloucestershire”.

Ruth Dooley, GFirst LEP Chair said: “This is really good news for GFirst LEP and shows that 
Government clearly recognises the vital role LEPs have played in sustaining local economic 
growth through the pandemic and supporting businesses throughout the country. A big 
thank you to the LEP Board, all our Business Group members and of course all the staff for 
their continuous hard work.”

Page 30



The White Paper goes on to say, “For the last decade, LEPs have acted as important 
organisational means of bringing together businesses and local leaders to drive economic 
growth across England. They have also been responsible for the delivery of a number of 
major funding streams. It is important to retain the key strengths of these local, business-
oriented institutions in supporting private sector partnerships and economic clusters, while 
at the same time better integrating their services and business voice into the UK 
Government’s new devolution plans. Where a devolution deal does not yet exist, LEPs will 
continue to play their vital role in supporting local businesses and the local economy.”

2) GFirst LEP Capital Projects update – to January 31st, 2022

Getting Building Fund

GFirst LEP successfully bid for £11.3 million from the Government’s ‘Getting Building Fund’. 
This is funding five ‘shovel ready’ projects outlined below creating 818 new jobs and 
safeguarding a further 43. 
The projects will assist 960 businesses and a further £4.875million will be leveraged from 
both the public and private sector.

 The Minster Exchange with Cheltenham Borough Council – site preparation works 
are now complete and delivery/assembly of modular building units has now 
completed (see photos below). 
Additional ground condition survey work confirmed site conditions to be acceptable 
and no cause for concern. The planning application for the Minster grounds and 
public realm works (ref 21/02019/FUL) was approved at the planning meeting 16th 
December 2021. 
The full opening is looking to be in May/June 2022. 

Page 31



 AccXel Construction Skills Accelerator Centre with KW Bell in Cinderford – The grand 
opening event was held on 9th December 2021. Operational training activities and events 
starting in March 2022 (delayed from January due to Covid restrictions). 

Page 32



 The Applied Digital Skills Centre with Cirencester College – construction work is 
progressing well, on track now to complete later this month (March 2022). See 
photo below for latest image. Short term provision for power supplies may be 
implemented to enable full building commissioning Feb/March 2022.

 ‘The Digital Innovation Farm’ with Hartpury University – Groundworks now 
complete. Waiting for delivery of the five modular units with the first three now 
arrived on site in February and the final two due on site in March 2022.  
 

 Cyber Incubator Units at Gloucestershire College, Cheltenham – a ‘soft’ opening 
event was held on 23rd September 2021 and the centre is now fully open and 
operating successfully. The Secretary of State for Levelling Up, Housing and 
Communities, The Rt Hon Michael Gove MP, visited Gloucestershire College’s 
Cheltenham Campus in mid-October.

Local Growth Fund

Page 33



A summary of the Local Growth Fund outputs reported to date (to end of September 2021);
 

 2,433 direct jobs created
 £79 million of additional public sector and £64 million of private sector leverage to 

date with a further £190 million forecasted
 386 new homes completed to date, a further 1,050 forecasted out to March 2025 

and a final forecasted total of 3,115
 23,418m2 of new learning space created
 18,126m2 of new commercial space created

Project updates;

 Gloucester Railway Station – Tenders for civil works were received on 4th January 
2022. GWR currently evaluating/normalising bids with a view to selecting a preferred 
bidder by end of January 2022. Bids were in line with expectations, meaning that 
currently a budget shortfall of c£850k exists for the full scope of works as originally 
proposed. Work is on-going to look at value engineering proposals and also to seek 
additional funding via DfT. Latest forecast of contract award is still April 2022 with a 
suggested completion of late 2022/early 2023. 
On a positive note the first phase of the highway works has now been completed 
and the new access onto Metz Way is now open. 

 Gloucestershire Airport Anson Park – Civil works now underway on site, with 
completion scheduled for April 2022. Site is now being actively marketed for 
development. 

 Gloucester SW Bypass – land acquisitions now completed. Demolition contract 
awarded and work will start in January 2022. The scheme now includes elements of 

Page 34



the new cycle/walking infrastructure to be provided as part of the Gloucester 
Levelling Up award. The total scheme is now a c£11.5 million scheme. Completion 
expected late 2023.

 A40 Innsworth Gateway – construction virtually complete on site, full completion 
now expected in January 2022. Full scheme cost now c£13.5 million representing a 
developer contribution of c£9 million.

 West Cheltenham Transport Improvement Scheme (WCTIS) – Phases 1 & 2 now 
complete and all traffic management provisions have been removed. 
Phases 3 & 4 due to complete in March 2022. A forecast underspend of c£1.3 million 
on the main WCTIS scheme is being re-allocated to support delivery of the Walking 
and Cycling Infrastructure Scheme along the B4063 to the Staverton M5 bridge. 
The work will run in parallel with the main scheme with completion forecast in 
March 2022 for the Staverton Bridge to Arle Court section. 
This section is the first part of the ‘Cycle highway’ that will run from Arle Court to the 
London Road/Black Dog Way junction in Gloucester. 

Full details of the scheme are available here; 
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/major-projects-list/b4063-gloucester-
to-cheltenham-cycle-improvements-scheme/

For further information on any of these projects please go to GFirst LEP’s website; 
http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/

3) Made in Gloucestershire initiative 

GFirst LEP, working in partnership with Gloucestershire County Council, plan to launch a 

‘Made in Gloucestershire’ initiative – flying the flag for the county, the scheme would enable 

local businesses, initially in the food and drink sector, to advertise to consumers that they 

supply products that are made within the county.

On the back of the Covid-19 pandemic we think that this would be another positive element 
of recovery planning for the county. We also feel it would help Gloucestershire’s businesses 
stand out from the crowd by building on their reputation for producing quality, locally made 
goods.

A working group has been set up that includes representatives from; GFirst LEP, GCC, Mid 
Counties Co-Op, M5 Gloucester Services/Westmorland, FSB, The Growth Hub, NFU, Visit 
Gloucestershire, CCRI, Cheltenham Chamber of Commerce, Hartpury University and 
MayBe*.

Page 35

https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/major-projects-list/b4063-gloucester-to-cheltenham-cycle-improvements-scheme/
https://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/highways/major-projects-list/b4063-gloucester-to-cheltenham-cycle-improvements-scheme/
http://www.gfirstlep.com/projects/


The initiative has been supported and welcomed by all parties and has already received 
considerable interest from the local media.

At the GEGJC meeting there is a request for funding of £150,000 to launch, promote and 
project manage the initiative for the first 2 years. 

Similar schemes elsewhere in the county eg ‘Produced in Northumberland’ run with a 
membership model with businesses paying an annual membership fee to be included on the 
website and for them to be allowed to use the ‘brand/logo on their products and in their 
marketing collateral. This would be our plan too in terms of sustainability for year 3 and 
onwards.

Timeline;
Phase 1 - Launch the scheme and the website post Easter 2022 – the first goal is to ‘sign up’ 
local producers.
Phase 2 - High profile launch event around ‘Gloucestershire Day’ in September 2022.

4) The Growth Hub network

Please find attached a new digital flyer to explain in a nutshell what The Growth Hub is, 
including an easy-to-understand depiction of the network, what’s on offer at each hub and 
how they all fit together. Please feel free to share across your networks.

Page 36



W W W . T H E G R O W T H H U B . B I Z T A L K T O U S @ T H E G R O W T H H U B . B I Z P O W E R E D  B Y :

WHO WE ARE:
We find the funding, the contacts, and the opportunities, so 
you don’t have to.

We’re people-people, not automated responses or computer 
decisions. We are independent and impartial, with no agenda 
besides helping your business grow.

We’re consultants, advisors, accountants, marketers, bankers, 
manufacturers, business owners, philanthropists, exporters, 
sustainability champions, engineers, customer service experts, 
and more.

We work with local businesses in Gloucestershire to help them 
achieve their goals.

Signposting - there’s so much out there, that knowing which 
direction to take can be enough to stop you from starting in 
the first place. We can point you in the right direction, and 
make the right introductions, to save you time and energy.

Workshops - every time a question gets asked enough, we 
stop making referrals and find an expert to run workshops on 
the topic. If they’re important to you, they’re important to us.

Consultancy - when you need specialist advice, or a long-term 
business partner, we work with you at a deeper level. We 
consult our networks, conduct research, leverage connections, 
and help solve your complex challenges.

YOU
WHO YOU ARE:
You are a strong, curious, and ambitious business 
leader with big plans ahead. You are imaginative and 
inventive, individual and impassioned, with impact in 
mind.

Your business is based in Gloucestershire and you're 
ready to take it to the next level. You are looking for 
funding, networking, connections, support 
programmes or to find out the latest laws and 
legislations. 

You've got questions and we have the answers. 

?
SO THE BIG QUESTION...
What does it cost?

Nothing! Nada. Not a penny. 

Well, not to you anyway. There’s millions behind this 
project, funded by lots of partners and organisations 
who all want Gloucestershire to shine.

WE'RE ON A MISSION TO 
HELP YOUR BUSINESS GROW

P
age 37

https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/
https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/


Free business support

Free online resources

Free workshops

Coworking

Meeting rooms

Offices to rent

✓

✓

✓

Free

Free to use

Available

✓

✓

✓

Free

Available for hire

Available

✓

✓

✓

Free

Available for hire

Available

✓

✓

✓

Membership

Available for hire

Available

✓

✓

✓

Membership

Available for hire

Full! Waiting list open

✓

✓

✓

Coming in 2022

Coming in 2022

Coming in 2022

FIND OUT MORE FIND OUT MORE FIND OUT MORE FIND OUT MORE FIND OUT MORE FIND OUT MORE

Gloucester Stroud Tewkesbury Forest of DeanCirencester Cheltenham

W W W . T H E G R O W T H H U B . B I Z T A L K T O U S @ T H E G R O W T H H U B . B I Z P O W E R E D  B Y :

WELCOME TO 
THE GROWTH HUB
THE SINGLE FRONT DOOR FOR BUSINESS SUPPORT
THROUGHOUT GLOUCESTERSHIRE

Plus, business support 
access points at every 

library 

VISIT A HUB 
NEAR YOU:

P
age 38

https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/gloucester
https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/tewkesbury
https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/stroud
https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/cirencester
https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/forestofdean
https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/Cheltenham
https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/
https://www.thegrowthhub.biz/


Gloucestershire Business Rates Pool Update AGENDA NO: 

Meeting Gloucestershire Economic Growth Joint Committee, Mar 2022

Report author Andrew Cummings – Strategic Director of Resources
Stroud District Council
Email: andrew.cummings@stroud.gov.uk

Background 
documents

Report to GEGJC November 2021

Location/Contact 
for inspection of 
background 
documents

N/A 

Main consultees Gloucestershire Chief Financial Officers

Planned dates N/A

Purpose of report

1. To note the anticipated position of the pool and SEDF balance for 
2021/22

2. Consider SEDF funding requests in respect of;
- The “Made in Gloucestershire Initiative” - £150k
- Central Gloucestershire Mass Transit Scheme – development 

funding – £850k

Recommendations

The Committee:
1. Note the forecast position of the Business Rates Pool and estimated 

balance for the SEDF in 2021/22

Reasons for 
recommendations

To update the Committee on the forecast for the Business Rates Pool, and 
the likelihood of the Pool continuing into future years

Resource 
Implications

Agreeing any bids presented to the committee alongside this report will 
reduce the SEDF balance at Appendix A.  

Page 39

Agenda Item 9

mailto:andrew.cummings@stroud.gov.uk


Background 
1. Gloucestershire continues to operate a business rates pool under the 50% rates 

retention system.  This pooling generates a saving in the levy returned to Central 
Government which is then distributed amongst Gloucestershire authorities.

2. The last update report to this Committee predicted that there would be a gain from the 
pool to the Strategic Economic Development Fund (SEDF) of £804k in 2021/22 as part 
of a total benefit from pooling of £4.027 million.

2021/22 Forecasts
3. As in previous years District Councils are carrying out monitoring of the in-year 

business rates position. This monitoring has been brought together to develop an 
estimated position for the Pool in this report.

4. Monitoring has been updated for five of the District Councils. There is no detailed 
information from Gloucester City at this point due to known issues around system 
access.  Gloucester City officers have confirmed that there has been no known 
reduction in their business rates position since their last completed monitoring at 
Quarter 2.

5. The position in the third quarter has seen a slight increase in the rates being collected 
across the County.  This in turn translates into a greater level of pool gain. Bringing 
together the position from all of the Districts, the estimated pool gain has increased to 
£4.17 million. This would lead to a SEDF allocation of £833k and other distribution as 
set out in the table below.

Table 1 – Estimated Pool Gain in 2021/22

Distribution
21/22 
Forecast

Strategic Economic Development Fund (as administered 
by GEGJC) £833k

District Councils £2.67m
County Council £667k
Total Pool Gain £4.17m

6. Although we are reaching the final stages of the financial year this gain should still be 
regarded as uncertain. Year end accounting processes and the consideration of 
business rate arrears and appeals can still have a material impact on the level of pool 
gain. 

7. As has been previously reported, the pool gain of £3.6 million for 2020/21 has not yet 
been confirmed in final reconciliations by DLUHC. It is hoped that this will be received 
before the end of the financial year and a verbal update will be provided at the 
Committee on the current position.

Page 40



Allocations from SEDF

8. The funding bid approved by the committee in November 2021, £65k for investigating a 
range of transport solutions and options to better connect Kemble Train Station to 
Cirencester Town Centre, is now included within the listed allocations at Appendix A.

9. The SEDF has now allocated the significant majority of its confirmed funds to date. 
Additional funds are anticipated but they are from financial years where the gain is not 
confirmed.  It has always been the policy of the Committee not to allocate funds which 
are not guaranteed as any shortfall in funds actually received would need to be made 
up from Gloucestershire authorities.  It is the view of the S151 Officer Group that this 
policy should remain in place.

10.Therefore, any funding bids in excess of currently unallocated funding (£259k as per 
Table 2 below) should be phased and provisional, based upon receipt of the funds.

11.Alternatively, the Committee could reallocate some of the funding currently highlighted 
towards the work of the City Region Board, which is not spent at this point, to be 
replenished at a later date.

12.The two bids to be presented to this committee total £1 million. This would require the 
allocation of the £259k and then further funds as they are confirmed, or a proportion of 
the City Region funding could be transferred.

13.The current position of the received funds, amounts allocated, and additional funds 
expected is shown in the table below.

Table 2 – Allocations of the SEDF

Funding Remaining as at 31/03/2021 £4.525m
Agreed 2021/22 Allocations (£3.911m)
Agreed 2022/23 Allocations (£0.355m)
Unallocated funding at 16/03/2022 £259k
Expected 2021/22 Gain £0.833m
Expected 2022/23 Gain £0.800m
Expected SEDF Balance £1.892m

Future of the Business Rates Pool

14.The final settlement for local government for 2022/23 has confirmed that pooling will 
continue, and business rates growth will not be reset at this point.  This means that it is 
highly likely that there will be a pooling gain in 2022/23. Therefore, an indicative 

Page 41



allocation of pooling growth has now been included in Appendix A. As previously 
discussed, this should not be used for resourcing decisions at this stage.

15. It is expected that Central Government will consult on the future of local government 
funding in the Spring of 2022.  This will likely provide further information as to whether a 
pooling system will continue to operate and, if so, how it may function.  Further updates 
will be provided to the Committee as more information becomes available.

Risk Assessment
16.The data currently shows that business rates income is making a recovery after the 

pandemic, albeit in a very uncertain economic environment. The high level of growth 
shows that the pool could currently withstand a significant drop in income before the 
pool was in a shortfall position.

Officer Advice
17. No officer advice required

Equalities considerations
18. There are no equalities considerations associated with this decision. It is purely a 
       financial consideration.

Consultation feedback
19.  Each of the Business Rates Pool members has been consulted about this report.

Performance Management/follow-up
20. Further update reports on the current position and future outlook of the pool will be   
presented to this committee.

Page 42



Projected Balance of the SEDF                         Appendix A

GEGJC 
Decision 
Date

2018/19
(£’000)

2019/20
(£’000)

2020/21
(£’000)

2021/22
(£’000)

2022/23
(£’000)

Funding
SEDF Balance b/f
2017/18 Pool (confirmed)
2018/19 Pilot Gain (confirmed)
Pool Gain (indicative)
SEDF Funding

Allocations
Operating Costs for Joint 
Committee
LEP Core Funding (Match)

LEP/LA Inward Investment 
Programme (EU Match)

J.10 Business Case Commission 
(contribution)

Economic Intelligence Data
Commissioning Fund

Rail Investment Strategy 

LNP Capital Mapping

Cyber Central

City Region Board

Strategic Plan for Growth

Cirencester- Kemble transport

Total Allocations

Nov 17

Nov 
17/Feb 
20/

Nov 17

Nov 18

Nov 18

Sept 19

Feb 20

Nov 
19/Jan21

June 21

Nov 21

336
828

3,438

4,602

(4)

(250)

(75)

(275)

0

0

(604)

3,998

970
4,968

0

(250)

0

0

0

(16)

(40)

(100)

0

(406)

4,562

731
5,293

(5)

(250)

0

0

0

(3)

0

(100)

(410)

(768)

4,525

833
5,358

(5)

(250)

0

0

(50)

(51)

0

(100)

(1,590)

(1,800)

(65)

(3,911)

1,447

800
2,247

(5)

(250)

0

0

0

0

0

(100)

0

0

(355)

SEDF Balance c/f 3,998 4,562 4,525 1,447 1,892

Notes
 SEDF balance held and accounted for by Gloucestershire County Council

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2022

Meeting Date Subject Purpose Key Notes/Actions 

16 March 2022 GFirst LEP Update Standing item

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item/information report plus 
possible requests (key decisions) for SEDF 
funding bids (proposed/assessed by the 
SOG)

Possible key 
decisions

Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals?

Standing item

GCC Economic Dashboard Standing item

Statement of Common Ground 
Update 

Information item

Cyber Project Update Information item
Broadband in the County Information item 

19 May 2022 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update

Standing item

GFirst LEP Update Standing item

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item Possible key 
decisions

Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals?

Standing item

GCC Economic Dashboard Standing item
Sector Profile: Agritech and 
Farming (representatives from 
RAU/ Hartpury/ Farm 491 to be 

Discussion item

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 10



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2022

invited)
UK Shared Prosperity Fund, 
including opportunities for 
Gloucestershire

Discussion item

Presentation on the work and 
opportunities of the FOD Excel 
Centre (representative to be 
invited)

Information item

7 September 2022 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update

Standing item

GFirst LEP Update – including 
feedback on district visits by 
David Owen and Ruth Dooley 
(both to be invited)

Standing item

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item Possible key 
decisions

Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals?

Standing item

GCC Economic Dashboard Standing item
Sector Profile: Freight and 
Logistics 

Discussion item

Gloucestershire’s role in 
Western Gateway’s growth 
agenda (representative from 
Western Gateway to be invited)

Discussion item

16 November 2022 Gloucestershire Economic 
Growth Joint Scrutiny 
Committee Update

Standing item

GFirst LEP Update Standing item

P
age 46



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2022

Business Rates Pool including 
updates on the performance of 
SEDF/bid proposals from the 
SOG

Standing item Possible key 
decisions

Forward Plan including 
emerging SEDF proposals?

Standing item

GCC Economic Dashboard Standing item
Review of Skills, including the 
first year of the Skills Hub

Information item

Health inequality within 
Gloucestershire and its impact 
on economic growth (Jen 
Taylor/ Cirencester College)

Discussion item

Sector Profile: Advanced 
Engineering (representative 
from Renishaw to be invited)

Discussion item 

Unscheduled Items
The decline in apprenticeship 
starts amongst under 19s

Information item

The provision of sustainable 
transport, particularly in rural 
areas.

Information item

Addressing economic inactivity 
in Gloucestershire, how to 
encourage young people to stay 
and work in the County, and 
helping vulnerable communities 
to become more resilient.

Discussion item

The impact of the shortage of 
bus drivers on the local 
economy (to be considered later 
on in the year)

Information item

Gloucestershire Growth Hub 
Network

Information item/Activity report

Business Rates Pooling in Information item/ possible decision (Andrew 

P
age 47



GLOUCESTERSHIRE ECONOMIC GROWTH JOINT COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 2022

Gloucestershire for future years Cummings)

P
age 48


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	GEGJC Actions - 26 January 2022

	4 Broadband in Gloucestershire
	7 GCC Economic Dashboard
	8 GFirst LEP Update
	Welcome to The Gloucestershire Growth Hub Network - Digital Flyer

	9 Business Rate Pool
	10 Forward (Work) Plan

